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June 7, 2002

The Honorable Erick Cook, Mayor
Members of City Council

City of Fairfield

5350 Pleasant Avenue

Fairfield, Ohio 45014

The Comprehensive Annual Financial Report of the City of Fairfield, Ohio for the fiscal year
ended December 31, 2001 is submitted herewith. The Department of Finance prepared the report.
The responsibility for both the accuracy of the presented data and the completeness and the fairness
of the presentation, including all disclosures, rests with the City of Fairfield, specifically with the
Department of Finance. We believe that the enclosed data is accurate in all material respects; and is
presented in a manner designed to fairly set forth the financial position and results of operations of
the various funds of the City. We further believe that all disclosures necessary to enable the reader to
gain an understanding of the City's financial activity have been included. This report represents and
reflects upon the City's financial operations and condition to the City's residents, its elected officials,
management personnel, financial institutions, City bondholders, rating agenc1es and all other parties
interested in the financial affairs of the City.

THE REPORTING ENTITY

A basis for preparing the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report for the City of Fairfield
was the identification of the reporting entity. Various potential component units were evaluated to
determine whether they should be reported in the City's Comprehensive Annual Financial Report. A
component unit was considered to be part of the City's reporting entity when it was concluded that
the City was financially accountable for the entity of the nature and significance of the relationship
between the City and entity was such that exclusion would cause the City's financial statements to be
misleading or incomplete. This report includes all of the funds and account groups of the City of
Fairfield.

The City of Fairfield is a political subdivision of the State of Ohio, which provides public

safety, public service and general government to its approximately 43,000 residents. In addition to
general government activities, the City operates water and sewer utility and a public golf course.
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THE REPORTING ENTITY(continued)

The Fairfield School District and the Lane Public Library of Butler County have not met the
established criteria for inclusion in the reporting entity, and accordingly are excluded from this
report.

THE COMPREHENSIVE ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT

The comprehensive annual financial report is presented in three sections: introductory, financial and
statistical. The introductory section includes this transmittal letter, the government's organizational
chart and a list of principal officials. The financial section includes the general purpose financial
statements and the combining and individual fund and account group financial statements and
schedules, as well as the auditor's report on financial statements and schedules. The statistical
section includes selected financial and demographic information, generally presented on a multi-year
basis

INDEPENDENT AUDIT

The State of Ohio requires an annual audit by either the Auditor of State or by an independent
public accounting firm. The State Auditor’s Office has completed an audit of the financial
statements. Their opinion on the City's general purpose financial statements is included in the
financial section of this Comprehensive Annual Financial Report.

FUND STRUCTURE

The City's accounting system is organized and operated on the "fund basis" which is the basic
fiscal and accounting entity in governmental accounting. The classification of said funds follows:

CATEGORY FUND TYPE

Governmental Funds General, Special Revenue, Capital Projects, Debt Service
Proprietary Funds Enterprise, Internal Service

Fiduciary Funds Trust and Agency

Included in Notes 1 and 2 of the Notes to Financial Statements are the description of all the
City's fund types and a summary of the significant accounting policies.
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GENERAL AND SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

General Fund-Revenues

Income tax revenues produced 64.6% of the General Fund's total revenues compared to 65.5%
last year. The $555,040 or 5.0% increase in Income Tax is the result of the growing employment base
experienced with the arrival and relocation of businesses to the City of Fairfield. The $47,789 or 5.1%
increase in Other Taxes is the result of a new alternate formula implemented by the County Budget
Commission to distribute local government funds to political subdivisions in the county and an
increase in the assessed valuation of the City property values. The $50,642 or 12.7% increase in
Charges for Services is the result of additional billings made as a result of the City’s sidewalk
reconstruction project taking place in the City in 2001. The $67,033 or 10% increase in Fines and
Forfeitures is the result of an increase in court costs charged and collected by the Municipal Court.
The $35,921 or 7% decrease in Investment Earnings is the result of a decrease in the interest rates
available on investments. The $426,307 or 163.8% increase in Miscellaneous Revenues is the result
of donations and contributions made by residents for various City sponsored events and activities.
The sources of revenues and variances from last year with all comparisons, are shown in the following
tabulation:

REVENUES 2001 2000 AMOUNT PERCENT
Income Tax $11,735,414  $11,180,374 $ 555,040 5.0%
Other Taxes 991,175 943,386 47,789 5.1
Intergovernmental Revenues 2,791,692 2,751,643 40,049 1.5
Licenses and Permits 349,090 341,570 7,520 2.2
Charges for Services 450,036 399,394 50,642 12.7
Fines and Forfeitures 735,069 668,036 67,033 10.0
Investment Earnings 480,355 516,276 (35,921) (7.0)
Miscellaneous Revenues 686,574 260,267 426,307 163.8
Totals $18,219,405 $17,060,946  .$1,158,459 6.8%
Income Taxes
Miscellaneous 65%
Revenues
4%
Investment Earnings
3%
Fines & Forfeitures Other;l'axes
4% 5%
Charges for Services Intergovernmental
29, evenues
2% 15%
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GENERAL AND SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS (Continued)

General Fund-Expenditures

Expenditures of the General fund excluding other financing uses in 2001 were $15,662,929, an
increase of 19.1% over 2000. In 2001, $6,271,610 was expended from the General Fund for Police
and Safety Services (Security of Persons and Property), which was a $401,607 or 6.8% increase
resulting from an increase in the personnel costs as a result of hiring additional officers. The increase
of $152,037 or 18% in Leisure Activities resulted from an increase in additional personnel in the
Parks and Recreation Division, which expanded operations in 2000. The decrease of $29,665 or 3.2%
in Community Environment resulted from a decrease in the number of building inspection services
required for new construction. The $817,575 or 19.5% increase in General Government reflects
increases in the number of administrative personnel. In 2001, $437,203 was expended from the
General Fund for Streets and Transportation; this amount represents a subsidy granted to the Butler
County Regional Transit Authority for providing bus service to the residents of the City. The
$985,260 or 154.0% increase in Capital Outlay reflects the administration's decision to program more
monies from the General Fund for equipment purchases and capital improvements. The following
reflects levels of expenditures in 2001 and 2000:

EXPENDITURES 2001 2000 AMOUNT PERCENT
Security of Persons & Property $6,271,610 $5,870,003 $401,607 6.8%
Public Health & Welfare Services 26,731 27,315 (584) 2.1
Leisure Activities 994,972 842,935 152,037 18.0
Community Environment 886,016 915,681 (29,665) (3.2)
Basic Utility Services 401,395 402,185 (790) (:2)
Streets and Transportation 437,203 250,000 187,203 74.9
General Government 5,019,834 4,202,259 817,575 19.5
Capital Outlay 1,625,168 639,908 590,615 92.3
Totals $15,662,929  $13,150,286 $2,512,643 19.1%

Public Health &

Streets & .
Transportation Welfare Services
30/0 170

Security of Persons Leisure Activities

& Property 6%
40%
. Communit
Capital Outlay Environmer):t
10% 6%
(2]

General Bgs:c _Utllity
Government- e; \(/;ces
32% o




GENERAL AND SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS (Continued)

Special Revenue Funds

The revenues of the Special Revenue Funds are derived from specific sources and are

designated for specific uses. Special Revenue Funds consist of the following:
Street Construction, Maintenance and Repair Fund
State Highway Improvement Fund -
Fire Levy Fund ’
Paramedical Services Levy Fund
Tax Recreation Fund
County Motor Vehicle Registration Fee Fund
Municipal Motor Vehicle Registration Fee Fund
Law Enforcement & Education Fund
Drug & Alcohol Treatment Fund
Law Enforcement Fund
Local Law Enforcement Fund
Probation Services Fund
Court Computer Fund
Special Projects Fund

Special Revenue Funds had revenues of $5,891,336 and expenditures of $5,829,630 in 2001.

INTERNAL ACCOUNTING AND BUDGETARY CONTROLS

We believe that the City's internal control structure adequately safeguarded assets and
provided reasonable assurance of proper recording of financial transactions. It is further our
intention to review these controls in depth on an ongoing basis for continued refinements and .
improvements.

Budgetary control is maintained at the fund level by the use of encumbrances for purchase

order amounts to vendors. Open encumbrances are reported as reservations of the fund balance for
the governmental fund types at December 31, 2001.

CASH MANAGEMENT |

Excluding investments held by trustees, cash temporarily idle during the year 2001 was
invested in State Treasury Asset Reserves or Repurchase Agreements (collateralized by U.S.
Treasury Bills). As ofyear-end, State Treasury Asset Reserves made up 30% of the City's total cash,
cash equivalents and investments, U.S. government securities 32.6%, certificates of deposits 28.9%,
money market accounts 1.9% and repurchase agreements 6.6%. Yields on these investment
instruments ranged from 2.22% to 5.75%. The amount of interest earned during the year was
$2,305,678 as compared to $2,821,737 earned in 2000
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DEBT ADMINISTRATION

The ratio of net debt to assessed valuation and net debt per capita is useful indications of the
City of Fairfield's debt position to all interested parties. The data for the City of Fairfield as of
December 31, 2001 was as follows:

2001 Population (Estimated) 43,149
Assessed Valuation 834,028,195
Total General Obligation (G.O.) Debt 9,655,000
Less Amount Available in Debt Service Fund 373,217
Net General Obligation Debt 9,281,783
Ratio of Net G.O. Debt to Assessed Valuation 1.11%
Debt per Capita $215.11

The City's total debt at the close of 2001 included the above mentioned $9,281,783 in net
General Obligation debt, $210,000 in special assessment bonded debt and $19,977,062 in enterprise
debt. The City's General Obligation bonds continue to have an excellent rating, which they have
carried for the past several years. In 1999, Moody’s Investor’s Service upgraded the City’s bonds to
carry an “Aa3” credit rating.

CITY INCOME TAX

The 1.5% locally levied tax applies to gross salaries, wages and other personal service
compensation earned by residents, both in and out of the City and upon earnings of non-residents
earned in the City. It also applies to net income of business organizations derived from business
activities conducted in the City. In November of 1990, the citizens of Fairfield voted to change the
distribution of the income taxes, which allocated monies to the Sewer Funds. The current 1.5% tax
rate is now subdivided into three components. The first 1.0% is used for operating expenses of the
General fund. Next, .3% is used for street construction, improvement and repair. Third, .2% of'the
tax is earmarked for capital improvements of a permanent nature.

Receipts from this tax are directly related to employment levels and the general
economic conditions in the Cincinnati area. Collections and allocations for the past two years are as
follows:

2001 : 2000
Allocated to General Fund $11,735,414 $11,180,374
Allocated to .3% Street Fund 3,520,623 3,354,113
Allocated to .2% Capital Improvement Fund 2,347,082 2,236,075

Gross Revenues | $17,603,119 $16,770,562
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GENERAL FIXED ASSETS

The General Fixed Assets of the City are those fixed assets used in the performance of
General Governmental functions and exclude the fixed assets of the Enterprise Funds. As of
December 31, 2001, the assets of the City amounted to $36,574,966. This represents the original
cost of the assets and is considerably less than their present value. Depreciation of the General Fixed
Assets 1s not recognized in the City's accounting system. '

UTILITY ENTERPRISE OPERATIONS

The City's water, sewer and solid waste management utility showed a increase of 1.6% in
operating revenues due to a slight increase in consumption of water for irrigation during the summer
months. Comparative data for the years ending December 31, 2001 and 2000, are presented in the
following tabulation:

Year Ended Year Ended
12/31/01 12/31/00
Operating Revenues $8,204,629 $8,076,044
Operating Expenses ' 8,443,412 7,671,480
Operating Income (Loss) (238,783) 404,564
Net Income 370,175 1,211,423
Income Available for Debt Service (1) ' 2,448,820 2,641,448

Annual Debt Service 2,232,215 2,293,341

(1) Amount includes operating income (loss), interest revenue, depreciation expense, permits and other revenues/expenses.

RECREATION ENTERPRISE OPERATIONS

The recreation facilities net loss in 2001 was ($266,566) as compared to a net loss of
($12,553) in 2000, this was the result of startup costs associated with the new executive nine hole
golf course which was being constructed in 2001. Comparative data for the years ending December
31, 2001 and 2000, are presented in the following tabulation:

Year Ended Year Ended
12/31/01 12/31/00
Operating Revenues $1,309,222 $1,345,740
Operating Expenses 1,552,196 1,344,311
Operating Income (Loss) (242,974) 1,429
Net Loss (266,566) (12,553)
Income Available for Debt Service (1) 30,721 156,117
Annual Debt Service ' 318,950 194,852

(1) Amount includes operating income (loss), interest revenue, depreciation expense and other revenues/expenses.
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RISK MANAGEMENT

By statute and court decisions, Ohio retains only limited tort immunity for local government.
In addition to potential tort liabilities, the City is liable for employees' Workers' Compensation
claims, plus the risk of casualty loss to real and personal property owned by the City, and must
provide faithful performance bonds for certain City officials. The City must also manage the risk of
dental expense claims by employees eligible for health care coverage as a fringe benefit.

FIDUCIARY OPERATIONS

Fiduciary Funds are used to account for assets held by the City as an agent for individuals,
private organizations, other governments and/or other funds. At December 31,2001, assets held by
these funds totaled $39,446. Liabilities relating to these funds amounted to $36,960.

SIGNIFICANT EVENTS

The following were among the many diverse activities and/or programs to which both the
elected officials and staff devoted their energies:

1y

2)

3)

4)

The City continued its strong efforts to attract and retain quality economic
development throughout 2001. The Rural Enterprise Zone Tax Incentive Program
was widely used in 1992 through 2001 to encourage business to locate in the City of
Fairfield. As a result of this initiative, the City has created 2,111 new jobs and
retained 2,942 jobs.

The City finished construction on the Lane Public Library Building, which cost the
City approximately $5.3 million, including the cost of land. The library building is
leased to the Lane Public Library System, which operates the facility. The Library
Building is located in the heart of the City’s downtown area, and will serve as a focal
point for various city activities and events.

The extension of Symmes Road east to Union Centre Boulevard and State Route
747 was completed in December of 2001. The project provides the City a five lane
eastbound connection to Interstate 75. The total project cost is approximately $8
million with the City of Fairfield contributing $5 million to the cost of the project

The City of Fairfield completed construction of a Veterans Memorial Park, which
commemorates veterans of the armed services. The park is located adjacent to the
Municipal Building and included in the park is a memorial water sculpture, a World
War I canon and a walking path.
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ECONOMIC OUTLOOK

The City of Fairfield's standards for services are considered excellent and its tax rates
compare favorably to other area governments. The City of Fairfield is located in the southwestern
part of the state, which ranks as one of the top growth areas in Ohio. The economic condition and
outlook of the City have substantially improved during the past five years, following several years of
slower economic growth attributable to a general decline in manufacturing activities. This year
alone, for example, a number of service related firms have started or expanded activities in the area.
This growth has had a positive effect on the government's tax base.

The City's Income Tax has remained stable over the last few years, and this trend is expected
to gradually improve with the development of various commercial and industrial facilities in the

City.

FUTURE PROJECTS

Significant capital projects in 2001 include the following:

1y

2)

3)

4)

In October of 2000, the City began the construction of a nine-hole executive golf course.
The project is estimated to cost $1.5 million and is scheduled for completion in May of
2002.

In February of 2002, the City of Fairfield acquired approximately 4.5 acres of property in
the Village Green area of the City. The site, which is located adjacent to the Village
Green Park and Lane Library, will be used to construct a Community/Cultural Center.
The preliminary design is for a 45,000 square foot structure, which will house a theater,
activity and meeting rooms, administrative offices and a senior center.

The City entered into an agreement to acquire the Fairfield Mall at a price of $2.9
million. The mall is a 70,000 square foot commercial development located in the
downtown area of Fairfield. The City’s intent in acquiring the site is to control the
development of commercial property in the downtown area of Fairfield.

The City will begin acquiring right of way for the Mack/Muhlhauser/Route 4 project.
This project consists of widening Muhlhauser Road to five lanes from Route 4 and Mack

- Road to State Route 747. As part of the project, a bridge is to be constructed over the

railroad tracks located near Route 4. Total estimated project cost is approximately $12
million with most of the funding being provided under state and federal grants.
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CERTIFICATE OF ACHIEVEMENT

The Government Finance Officers Association of the United States and Canada (GFOA)
awarded a Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting to the City of Fairfield
for its Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) for the year ending December 31, 2000. In
order to be awarded a Certificate of Achievement, a governmental unit must publish an easily
readable and efficiently organized CAFR, whose contents conform to program standards. Such
reports must satisfy both generally accepted accounting principles and applicable legal requirements.
A Certificate of Achievement is valid for a period of one year only. We believe our current report
continues to conform to the Certificate of Achievement Program requirements, and we are
submitting it to the GFOA to determme its eligibility for another certificate.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

Preparation of this report could not have been accomplished without the professional,
efficient and dedicated services of the entire staff of the Finance Department and the various
department heads and employees who assisted and contributed to its preparation. Further
appreciation is extended to the Mayor, the City Council, and the City Manager for their
encouragement, assistance and approval. It is a sincere pleasure to be employed by a group of people

who appreciate and respect principles of financial and budgetary restraint as prevails in the City of
Fairfield.

Respectfully submitted,
CITY OF FAIRFIELD

7 o—aém—vw\
es A.Hanson
Director of Finance
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Certificate of
Achievement
- for Excellence
“in Financial
Reporting

Presented to.

City of Fairfield,
- Ohio

For its Comprehensive Annual

Financial Report
for the Fiscal Year Ended
- December 31, 2000

A Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial
Reporting is presented by the Government Finance Officers
Association of the United States and Canada to
government units and public employee retirement
systems whose comprehensive annual financial
reports (CAFRs) achieve the highest
standards in government accounting
and financial reporting.

resident

B

Executive Director
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250 West Court Street
STATE OF OHIO Suite 150 E

OFFICE OF THE AUDITOR Cincinnati, Ohio 45202
Telephone 513-361-8550
800-368-7419
Facsimile 513-361-8577
www.auditor.state.oh.us

JiM PETRO, AUDITOR OF STATE

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANTS

City of Fairfield

Butler County

5350 Pleasant Avenue
Fairfield, Ohio 45014

To the City Council:

We have audited the accompanying general-purpose financial statements of the City of Fairfield, Butler
County, Ohio (the City), as of and for the year ended December 31, 2001, as listed in the table of
contents. These general-purpose financial statements are the responsibility of the City's management.
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these general-purpose financial statements based on our
audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards,
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of
material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts
and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles
used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial
statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the general-purpose financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of the City of Fairfield, Butler County, as of December 31, 2001, and the
results of its operations and the cash flows of its proprietary fund types for the year then ended in
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated June 12, 2002
on our consideration of the Government's internal control over financial reporting and our tests of its
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grants. That report is an integral
part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards and should be read in
conjunction with this report in considering the results of our audit.

Our audit was performed for the purpose of forming an opinion on the general-purpose financial
statements of the City, taken as a whole. The combining and individual fund and account group financial
statements and schedules listed in the table of contents, are presented for purposes of additional analysis
and are not a required part of the general-purpose financial statements. Such information has been
subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the general-purpose financial statements and,
in our opinion, is fairly presented, in all material respects, in relation to the general-purpose financial
statements taken as a whole.



City of Fairfield

Butler County

Report of Independent Accountants
Page 2

We did not audit the data included in the introductory and statistical sections of this report and therefore
express no opinion thereon.

Jim Petro
Auditor of State

June 12, 2002
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EXHIBIT 4
CITY OF FAIRFIELD
COMBINED STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES
AND CHANGES IN FUND EQUITY
ALL PROPRIETARY FUND TYPES
FOR YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2001

MEMORANDUM ONLY

INTERNAL
ENTERPRISE SERVICE 2001 2000

Operating Revenues

Charges for Services ' $9,513,851 $1,910,624 $11,424,475 $11,120,395
Operating Expensesv

Personal Services 3,436,175 294,197 3,730,372 3,455,172

Contractual Services . 2,976,148 1,461,528 4,437,676 3,940,896

Materials and Supplies ’ 1,268,840 228,075 1,496,915 1,219,353

Utilities 584,177 584,177 576,753

Depreciation and Amortization - 1,730,268 1,730,268 1,598,695
Total Operating Expenses 9,995,608 1,983,800 11,979,408 10,790,869
Operating lncotﬁe (Loss) - (481,757) (73,176) (554,933) 329,526
Non-Operating Revenues (Expenses)

Interest Revenue 915,869 13,460 929,329 1,116,728

Interest Expense (945,664) (945,664) (950,684)

Permits 309,442 309,442 333,138

Other Revenues 5,719 5,719 4,061
Total Non-Operating Revenues (Expenses)- Net 285,366 13,460 298,826 503,243
Net Income (Loss) Before Operating Transfers (196,391) (59,716) (256,107) 832,769
Operating Transfers from General Fund 300,000 150,000 450,000 550,000
Net Income 103,609 90,284 193,893 1,382,769
Retained Earnings; Beginning of Year ' 42,337,367 421,424 42,758,791 ‘ 41,376,022
Retained Earnings, End of Year ) . 42,440,976 ’ 511,708 42,952,684 42,758,791
Contributed Capital, End of Year 8,743,786 8,743,786 8,743,786
Fund Equity, End of Year _ $51,184,762 $511,708 $51,696,470

$51,502,577

See accompanying notes to financial statements.



EXHIBIT 5
CITY OF FAIRFIELD

COMBINED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
ALL PROPRIETARY FUND TYPES
FOR YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2001
INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash Flows from Operating Activities:
Cash Received from Charges
Cash Payments for Refunds
Cash Payments for Goods and Services
Cash Payments for Wages and Benefits
Other Operating Revenues

Net Cash Flows from Operating Activities

Cash Flows from Non-Capital Financing Activities:
Permit Fees Received
Payments from Other Funds

Net Cash Flows from Non-Capital Financing Activities

Cash Flows from Capital and Related Financing Activities:
Acquisition and Construction of Capital Assets
Proceeds from [ssuance of Bonds and Notes
Principal Paid on Bonds and Notes
interest Paid on Bonds and Notes
Repayment of Notes

Net Cash Flows from Capital and Related Financing Activities

Cash Flows from Investing Activities:
Payments for Investments
Proceeds from Sale and Maturity of Investments
Interest on Cash, Deposits and investments

Net Cash Flows from Investing Activities
Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and Cash Equivalent (includes Restricted Assets),
Beginning of Year

Cash and Cash Equivalent (includes Restricted Assets),
End of Year

Reconciliation of Operating Income to Net Cash Provided
By (Used For) Operating Activities:
Operating Income (Loss)
Adjustment to reconcile Operating Income to
Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities:
Depreciation and Amortization
Changes in Assets and Liabilities
(Increase) Decrease in Accounts Receivables
(Increase) in Inventory
Increase (Decrease) in Accounts Payable
Increase (Decrease) in Accrued Liabilities
Increase (Decrease) in Accrued Payroli,
Sick and Vacation Leave

Net Cash Flows from Operating Activities

See accompanying notes to financial statements.

TOTAL
MEMORANDUM ONLY
INTERNAL
ENTERPRISE SERVICE 2001 2000
* $9,951,498 $1,910,624 $11,862,122 $11,407,352
(490,498) (490,498) (375,045)
(4,588,974) (1,666,177) (6,255,151) (5,831,803)
(3,388,548) (322,858) (3,711,408) (3,411,053)
143,807 143,807 147,335
1,627,285 (78,411) 1,548,874 1,936,986
312,822 312,822 336,210
300,000 150,000 450,000 550,000
612,822 150,000 762,822 886,210
(4,171,082) (4,171,082) (1,439,524)
2,550,000 2,550,000 3,128,221
(1,545,107) (1,545,107) (1,294,395)
(1,008,058) (1,006,058) (993,789)
(2,800,000) (2,800,000) {1,800,000)
(6,972,247) (6,972,247) (2,499,487)
1,249,270 (110,000) 1,139,270 (1,684,270)
7,850,445 460,000 8,310,445 1,191,381
1,042,900 13,460 1,056,360 1,308,381
10,142,615 363,460 10,506,075 815,492
5,410,475 435,049 5,845,524 1,139,201
1,291,341 122,563 1,413,904 274,703
$6,701,816 $557,612 $7,259,428 $1,413,904
($481,757) ($73,176) ($554,933) $334,859
1,730,268 1,730,268 1,598,695
92,848 92,848 51,434
23,982 23,982 (39,021)
214,317 3,614 217,931 (53,804)
(6,251) (6,251) 703
47,627 (2,598) 45,029 44,120
$1,627,285, ($78,411) $1,548,874 $1,936,986




CITY OF FAIRFIELD
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2001

NOTE 1-DESCRIPTION OF CITY AND BASIS OF PRESENTATION:

A. REPORTING ENTITY

The City of Fairfield, Ohio ("the City") operates as a Home Rule City in
accordance with Article XVIII of the Ohio Constitution under a City Manager-
Council form of government.

As defined by generally accepted accounting principles established by the
Governmental Accounting Standards Board, the financial reporting entity consists
of the primary government, as well as its component units, which are legally
separate organizations for which the elected officials of the primary government
are financially accountable. Financial accountability is defined as appointment of
a voting majority of the component unit's board, and either: a) the ability to impose
will by the primary government, or b) the possibility that the component unit will
provide a financial benefit to or impose a financial burden on the primary
government.

Blended Component Unit

This type of component unit is a legally separate entity from the City, but is
so intertwined with the City that it is, in substance, the same as the City. It is
reported as part of the City and blended into the appropriate funds.

Discretely Presented Component Units

Discretely presented component units are entities separate from the City,
but for which the City is financially accountable, or whose relationships with the
City are such that exclusion would cause the City's financial statements to be
misleading or incomplete. These component units are reported in separate
columns to emphasize that they are legally separate from the City.

The City of Fairfield does not have any component units to be included
in its Comprehensive Annual Financial Report.
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A. REPORTING ENTITY (continued)

Among the activities and services as authorized by the City of Fairfield's
charter are public safety/municipal court, recreation, sanitation, health and social
services, public improvements, planning and zoning, highway and streets and
general administrative services. Each of these services is under direct control
of the City Manager-Council form of government, which appropriates for and
finances the operation of service. Each is, therefore, included as part of the
financial reporting entity.

B. MEASUREMENT FOCUS

The accounting and reporting treatment applied to a fund is determined
by its measurement focus. All Governmental Funds and the Expendable Trust
Fund are accounted for on a spending or "financial flow" measurement focus.
Governmental fund operating statements present increases (revenues and other
financing sources) and decreases (expenditures and other financing uses) in net
assets.

All Proprietary Funds are accounted for on a cost of services or "capital
maintenance" measurement focus. This means that all assets and all liabilities
associated with this activity are included on their balance sheets. Their reported
fund equity (net total assets) is segregated into contributed capital and retained
earnings components. Proprietary fund type operating statements present
increases (revenues) and decreases (expenses) in net total assets.

C. BASIS OF PRESENTATION

The accounts of the City are organized on the basis of funds or groups of
accounts. The individual funds are grouped in the financial statements as
follows:

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

General fund - used to account for all revenues and expenditures except those
required to be accounted for in another fund.

Special Revenue funds - used to account for the revenue from specific sources
(other than special assessments) which are legally restricted for specific
purposes.

Debt Service fund - used to account for the payment of principal and interest on
certain general obligation and special assessment debt. The principal sources of
revenue are income tax revenues transferred from the Capital Projects funds and
assessments levied against specific benefited properties.
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C. BASIS OF PRESENTATION (continued)

Capital Projects funds - used to account for revenues and expenditures related
to the acquisition or construction of major capital facilities (other than those
financed by proprietary funds or special assessment funds).

PROPRIETARY FUNDS

Enterprise funds - used to account for operations where the intention is to
finance such operations primarily through user charges, or where the City has
decided that the periodic determination of revenues, expenses and net income is
appropriate.

Internal Service funds - used to account for the financing of goods and services
provided by one department or agency to other departments or agencies of the
City, or to other governments, on a cost reimbursement basis.

FIDUCIARY FUNDS

Expendable Trust fund - used to account for assets held by the City as a trustee
for individuals. The measurement focus of the expendable trust fund is the same
as the governmental funds and is, therefore, maintained on the modified accrual
basis of accounting.

Agency fund - used to account for funds collected and held by the City as
trustee or agent for individuals, private organizations, other governmental units
and/or other funds. The Agency fund is purely custodial and does not involve
the measurement of results of operations.

ACCOUNT GROUPS

General Fixed Assets - used to account for those capital assets with a useful
life of greater than one year (other than those accounted for in the proprietary
funds).

General Long-Term Debt - used to account for general obligation bonds with
maturities in excess of one year (except for those accounted for in the propri-
etary funds) and other non-current general obligations of the City. These bonds
are collateralized by the credit of the City as a whole and are payable from
general government resources. Repayment of these bonds is made through
earnings taxes.
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D. TOTAL (MEMORANDUM ONLY) COLUMNS

Total columns on the General Purpose Financial Statements are
captioned "Memorandum Only" to indicate that they are presented only to
facilitate financial analysis. Information in these columns is not intended to and
does not present financial position, results of operations, or cash flows in
conformity with generally accepted accounting principles. Such information
should not be considered comparable to a consolidation. Comparative data for
the prior year has also been provided in the general purpose financial statements
in order to provide an understanding of changes in the City’s financial position
and operations.

NOTE 2-SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES:

The City of Fairfield's financial statements are prepared in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles for state and local governmental units.
The following is a summary of the City's significant accounting policies.

A. BASIS OF ACCOUNTING

Basis of accounting refers to when revenues and expenditures or
expenses are recognized in the accounts and reported in the financial statements.

Modified Accrual Basis of Accounting - The modified accrual basis of
accounting is followed in the Governmental fund types and the Expendable
Trust and Agency funds. Under the modified accrual basis of accounting,
revenues are recorded when susceptible to accrual, i.e., both measurable and
available. Measurable means the amount of the transaction can be determined
and available means collectible within the current period or soon enough
thereafter to pay current liabilities within 30 days. Expenditures are recognized
in the accounting period in which fund liability is incurred, if measurable.

Accrual Basis of Accounting - The accrual basis of accounting is followed in
all Proprietary funds. Under the accrual basis of accounting, revenues are
recognized when earned, and expenses are recorded when incurred.

In accordance with Statement No. 20 of the Governmental Accounting
Standards Board, "Accounting and Financial Reporting for Proprietary Funds
and Other Governmental Entities that use Proprietary Fund Accounting," the
City has elected not to apply the provisions of the Statements and Interpretations
of the Financial Accounting Standards Board issued after November 30, 1989.
The City will continue applying all applicable pronouncements issued by the
Governmental Accounting Standards Board.
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B. THE BUDGET PROCESS

The City follows these procedures in establishing and legally adopting
the budgetary information for the Governmental fund types reflected in the
financial statements:

(D

2

€)
(4)

)

(6)

Q)

®)

©)

The Administration prepares the annual budget and submits it to
the City Council for adoption. This budget is based upon
estimated receipts and expenditures.

Prior to holding a public hearing on the proposed budget, it is
made available for review by the public at the offices of the
Clerk of Council.

City Council holds a public hearing on the proposed budget.

City Council adopts the budget, by fund, for the following year
by ordinance on or before July 15th of each year.

After adoption, the budget and the ordinance, which is approved,
are certified to the County Budget Commission by July 20th.
The Commission conducts another public hearing and deter-
mines if the budget fairly represents the needs of the City.

The City accepts and levies the County Budget Commission's
estimated necessary tax rate. Their acceptance must be certified
to the County Auditor on or before October 1st.

The Finance Director files a certificate of estimated resources
and expenditures for the ensuing year on or about January 1st.

On or about January 1st, an appropriation measure, by fund, is
passed by City Council for the ensuing year. The budgeted
amounts by department, division or function reflected in the
financial statements and supplemental data include this initial
appropriation measure and all revisions thereto for the year, as
described below.

The Finance Director is authorized to transfer budgeted amounts
between expenditure categories within any department, division
or function; however, any transfers or other revisions that affect
the total appropriation measure for any fund must be authorized
by City Council. The legal level of control is the fund.
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B. THE BUDGET PROCESS (continued)

(10)  Supplemental appropriations are made because of several
factors. Amendments to the appropriation ordinance made during
the year totaled $3,868,169 for the General Fund, $331,867 for
Special Revenue Funds and $11,576,441 for Capital Projects
Funds and are reflected in the revised budget amounts in the
budget and actual comparisons.

(11) At the close of each fiscal year, the unencumbered balance of
each appropriation reverts to the fund from which it was
appropriated, and is subject to future appropriation. The
encumbrances outstanding at year-end represent the estimated
amount of the expenditures ultimately to result if unperformed
contracts in process at year-end are completed. The encum-
brances appropriated balance is carried forward to the succeeding
fiscal year and need not be reappropriated.

C. BUDGET BASIS OF ACCOUNTING

The Combined Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in
Fund Balances--Budget and Actual--General Fund, Special Revenue Fund
Types, Debt Service Fund and Capital Project Fund Types (Non-GAAP
Budgetary Basis) is presented to provide a comparison of actual results with the
budget. It is the City's policy to formally budget those funds, which derive their
primary revenues from levied taxes. The budgetary basis as provided by law is
based upon accounting for certain transactions on the basis of cash receipts and
disbursements

The major differences between the budget basis and the GAAP basis are:

(1) Revenues are recorded when received in cash (budget) as opposed to when
susceptible to accrual (GAAP);

(2) Certain expenditures are recorded when paid in cash (budget) as opposed to
when the liability is incurred (i.e., vacation leave accrued in the current
period, which is the GAAP basis);

3) Certain revenues and expenditures are recorded (budget) as opposed to
being eliminated to conform to GAAP (extinguishment of bonds issued by
and then purchased by the City).

4) Encumbrances are recorded as the equivalent of expenditures (budget) as
opposed to a reservation of fund balance (GAAP).
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C. BUDGET BASIS OF ACCOUNTING (Continued)

The following summarizes the effects on the December 31, 2001 (GAAP Basis)
Excess Revenues (Expenditures) and Fund Balances had they been recorded on the
City's budget basis of accounting.

Excess of Revenues and Other Financing Sources
Over Expenditures and Other Uses

December 31, 2001
Special Debt Capital
General Revenue Service Project
Fund Funds Funds Funds
As Reported (GAAP Basis) $1,059,153 $ 211,706 $ 77,907 $(4,610,028)
Revenue:
Received in 2001 accrued in 2000 1,222,629 12,782 44,467 910,130
Received in 2002 earned in 2001 (1,196,271) (5,756) (170,344) (707,572)
Expenditures:

Paid in 2001 accrued in 2000 (757,692) (191,723) (39,221) (789,472)
Accrued in 2001 paid in 2002 761,073 197,131 168,955 4,667,404
Outstanding Encumbrances (818,400) (118,013) (2,831,808)
Budgetary Basis $ 270,492 $ 106,127 $ 81,764  $(3,361,346)

Fund Balances
December 31, 2001
Special Debt Capital
General Revenue Service Project
Fund Funds Funds Funds
As Reported (GAAP Basis) 7,797,738 1,581,772 1,429,825 10,893,018
Revenue:
Received in 2002 earned in 2001 (1,196,271) (5,756) (170,344) (707,572)
Expenditures:
Accrued in 2001 paid in 2002 761,073 197,132 168,955 4,667,404
Outstanding Encumbrances (818,400) (118,013) (2,831,808)
Budgetary Basis $6,544,140  $1,655,135  $1,428,436 $12,021,042

D. REVENUE RECOGNITION

Revenue resulting from exchange transaction, in which each party gives and
receives essentially equal value, is recorded on the accrual basis when the
exchange takes place. On a modified accrual basis, revenue is recorded in the
fiscal year in which the resources are measurable and become available. Available
means that the resources will be collected within the current fiscal year or are
expected to be collected soon enough thereafter to be used to pay liabilities on the
current fiscal year. For the City, available means expected to be received within
thirty days of year-end.
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D. REVENUE RECOGNITION (Continued)

Non-exchange transactions, in which the City received value without directly
giving equal value in return, include property taxes, grants, entitlements, and
donations. On an accrual basis, revenue from property taxes is recognized in the
fiscal year for which the taxes are levied (see Note 10). Revenue from grants,
entitlements and donations is recognized in the fiscal year in which all eligibility
requirements have been satisfied. Eligibility requirements include timing
requirements, which specify the year when the resources are required to be used or
the year when use is first permitted, matching requirements, in which the City must
provide local resources to be used for a specified purpose, and expenditure
requirements, in which the resources are provided to the City on a reimbursement
basis. On a modified accrual basis, revenue from non-exchange transactions must
also be available before it can be recognized.

Under the modified accrual basis, the following revenue sources are
considered to be both measurable and available at year-end: property taxes,
delinquent property taxes received within one month of year-end, and income
taxes.

Deferred revenue arises when assets are recognized before revenue
recognition criteria have been satisfied. Property taxes for which there is an
enforceable legal claim as of December 31, 2001, but which were levied to finance
year 2002 operations, have been recorded as deferred revenues.

On the modified accrual basis of accounting, receivables that will not be
collected within the available period have also been reported as deferred revenue.

E. CASH AND INVESTMENTS

Except for investment contracts and money market investments that had a
remaining maturity of one year or less at the time of purchase, investments are
reported at fair value, which is based on quoted market prices. Nonparticipating
investment contracts (repurchase agreements) and money market investments that
had a remaining maturity of one year or less at the time of purchase are reported at
cost or amortized cost. The City pools its cash for investment and resource
management purposes. Each fund's equity in pooled cash and investments
represents the balance on hand as if each had maintained its own cash and
investment account.

The City has invested funds in the State Treasury Asset reserve of Ohio

(STAR Ohio) during fiscal 2001. STAR Ohio is an investment pool managed by the
State Treasurer’s Office which allows governments within the State to pool their
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E. CASH AND INVESTMENTS (Continued)

funds for investment purposes. STAR Ohio is not registered with the SEC as an
investment company, but does operate in a manner consistent with Rule 2a7 of the
Investment Company Act of 1940. Investments in STAR Ohio are valued at STAR
Ohio’s share price, which is the price the investment could be sold for on December
31,2001.

F. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

For purposes of the statement of cash flows, the City of Fairfield considers all
cash and deposits with financial institutions, repurchase agreements, investments
with outside investment pools and money market accounts to be cash equivalents.
Certificates of deposits and U.S. Government Securities with an original maturity
date of greater than three months are considered investments.

G. INVENTORIES

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or market determined on the first-in,
first-out (FIFO) basis and consist principally of chemicals and other water and
sewer utility supplies.

H. INTERFUND RECEIVABLES/PAYABLES

During the course of its operations, the City has numerous transactions
between funds to finance operations, provide services and service debt. To the
extent that certain transactions had not been paid or received as of December 31,
2001, balances of interfund amounts receivable and payable were:

Interfund Interfund
Fund Receivables Payables
Debt Service Funds:
General Bond Retirement Fund $167,404
Capital Project Funds:
.2% Capital Improvement Fund $147,351
.3% Capital Improvement Fund 20,053
Total $167,404 $167,404

I. GENERAL FIXED ASSETS

General fixed assets, which consist of property and equipment acquired
through expenditures of governmental funds, are recorded at cost or estimated
historical cost, or with respect to donated assets, fair market value at date of
donation. Public domain infrastructure assets such as roads, sidewalks, drainage
systems and improvements other than buildings are not capitalized. Depreciation
has not been provided for general fixed assets.
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J. PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT-ENTERPRISE FUNDS

Property and equipment owned by the enterprise funds is stated at cost, or
estimated historical cost, or with respect to donated assets, the fair market value at
the date of donation. Depreciation is provided over the estimated useful lives using
the straight-line method. Estimated useful lives are as follows:

Improvements other than Buildings 50 years
Buildings and Structures 30 to 50 years
Equipment 5 years

Maintenance and repair costs are charged to expense as incurred. The cost
and related accumulated depreciation of property and equipment retired or
otherwise disposed of are removed from the accounts with any resulting gain or loss
reflected in income.

K. ENCUMBRANCES

Encumbrances for purchase orders, contracts and other commitments are
recorded in the governmental funds to reserve that portion of the applicable
appropriation. Encumbrances outstanding at year-end are reported as reserves of the
fund balances since they do not constitute expenditures or liabilities.

L. RESTRICTED ASSETS:
Restricted assets are those assets required by the bond agreements and trust
indentures to be used for payment of revenue bond principal and interest and
additional funds provided by management for future bond requirements (See

Note 6).

NOTE 3-EQUITY IN POOLED CASH AND DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS:

The City follows the practice of pooling cash and investments except for restricted
funds generally held by outside custodians on behalf of the Enterprise Funds and the cash
of the Municipal Court Agency Fund. Cash and investments are summarized by each fund
type in the combined balance sheet as equity in pooled cash and investments.

Cash and Deposits - At year-end, the carrying amount of the City's deposits was
$13,257,666 and the depository balance was $14,920,279. Of the depository balance,
$200,000 was covered by federal depository insurance; $14,720,279 was covered by
collateral held by third party trustees in single financial institution collateral pools, but not
in the City's name, collateralizing all public funds on deposit with the specific depository
institution. In accordance with Section 135.18 of the Ohio Revised Code, all deposits with
eligible financial institutions must be collateralized in an amount equal to 110% of
uninsured deposits. A qualified trustee as defined by state law must hold the collateral.
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NOTE 3-EQUITY IN POOLED CASH AND DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS:

(Continued)

Investments - The City is authorized by state law to make direct investments in
U.S. government, federal agency and instrumentality obligations, repurchase agreements
in obligations of the U.S. government and federal agencies, obligations of the State of
Ohio and the State Treasurer's investment pool. The Director of Finance may enter into
repurchase agreements for a period not to exceed thirty days. Such agreements shall be
entered into with only eligible financial institutions as defined by state law.

At December 31, 2001 the amount of investments consisted of the following:

Unrestricted Restricted Total
Deposits with the State Treasury $11,950,000 $1,050,000 $13,000,000
U.S. Government Securities 14,087,031 14,087,031
Repurchase Agreement 2,841,387 2,841,387
Money Market Mutual Fund 848,880 848,880
Total $28,878,418 $1,898,880 $30,777,298

The City's investments are categorized according to credit risk into the following
categories: (1) insured or registered, or securities held by the City or its agent (bank
trust department) in the City's name; or (2) uninsured and unregistered, with securities
held by the counterparty's trust department or agent in the City's name; or (3)
uninsured, unregistered securities held by the counterparty, or its trust department or
agent but not in the City's name. Investments in mutual funds made by a trustee who
is managing the Enterprise Fund's restricted assets are unclassified since they are not

evidenced by securities that exist in physical or book entry form.

Categories
Carrying Fair
1 2 3 Amount Value
Categorized Investments:
U.S. Government Securities  $ 14,087,031 $ 14,087,031 $14,087,031
Repurchase Agreement $2,841,387 2,841,387 2,841,387
Uncategorized Investments:
Deposits in the State
Treasurer’s Investment Pool 13,000,000 13,000,000
Money Market Mutual Fund 848,880 848,880
Total $ 14,087,031 $2,841,387  $30,777,298  $30,777,298

Reconciliation of Cash, Cash Equivalents and Investments - The classification of
cash, cash equivalents and investments on the combined financial statements is based on
criteria set forth in GASB Statement No. 9. The classification of cash and cash
equivalents for purposes of this note is based on criteria set forth in GASB Statement

Number 3.
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NOTE 3-EQUITY IN POOLED CASH AND DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS:
(Continued)

A reconciliation between classifications of cash and investments on the combined
financial statements and the classifications of this note are as follows:

Cash and Cash
Equivalents Investments

Per Combined Balance Sheet $16,599,053 $27,435,911
Investments:

Deposits in the State

Treasurer’s Investment (13,000,000) 13,000,000

Repurchase Agreement (2,841,387) 2,841,387

Certificates of Deposit 12,500,000 (12,500,000)
Per GASB Statement No. 3 $13,257,666 $30,777,298

NOTE 4-FIXED ASSETS AND DEPRECIATION:

The changes in the General Fixed Assets Account Group during 2001 were as
follows:

1/1/01 Additions Deletions 12/31/01
Land $ 4,154,175 $ 4,154,175
Buildings 18,292,449 $4,545,547 22,837,996
Equipment 9,239,068 1,105,932 $762,205 9,582,795
Totals $31,685,692 $5,651,479 $762,205 $36,574,966

The changes in the Proprietary Fund Type Fixed Assets and Accumulated
Depreciation during 2001 were as follows:

1/1/01 Additions Deletions 12/31/01

Land $1,091,351 $1,091,351
Buildings 37,962,532 $2,084,142 40,046,674
Improvements 30,266,724 1,590,730 31,857,454
Equipment 2,796,460 552,563 45,497 3,303,526
Totals 72,117,067 4,227,435 45,497 76,299,005
Accumulated

Depreciation 21,022,665 1,719,218 (45,497) 22,696,386
Net $51,094,402 $2,508,217 $53,602,619
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NOTE S-TEMPORARY BORROWINGS:

Under State law and by order of the City Council, the City is authorized to borrow
funds on a temporary basis for the following purposes:

(1) to fund current operating costs prior to the collection of tax revenues by
issuance of revenue anticipation notes,

(2) to fund capital project costs incurred prior to selling permanent debt by
issuance of bond anticipation notes, and

(3) 1in anticipation of the issuance of special assessment bonds for periods not
longer than five (5) years.

The temporary borrowings are general obligations of the City and carry maturity
dates limited by statute to not more than twelve months. In accordance with Section
133.32 ofthe Ohio Revised Code, the City has issued $4,500,000 and $2,550,000 in bond
anticipation notes expecting to extinguish this debt with revenues of the Capital Projects
and Enterprise Funds, respectively, over a period not to exceed five years.

The temporary borrowing recorded in the Capital Projects Funds as of December
31, 2001 was:

Interest Balance
Issue Rate Outstanding
Various Purpose Road Improvement Notes 3.32% $ 500,000
Symmes Road Improvement Notes 3.65% 4,000,000

The temporary borrowings recorded in the Enterprise Funds as of December 31,
2001 were:

Interest Balance
Issue Rate Outstanding
Wastewater System Improvement Notes 3.00% $ 250,000
Family Aquatic Center Notes 3.00% 800,000
Golf Course Notes 2.26% 1,500,000

The City intends to refinance all notes at their maturity.

The following is a summary of note transactions for the year ended December 31, 2001.

Capital
Projects Enterprise
Funds Funds
Notes/Loans Payable at 1/1/01 $ 745,000 $ 3,000,000
Additions 4,000,000
Reductions (245,000) (450,000)
Notes/Loans Payable at 12/31/01 $4,500,000 $2,550,000
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NOTE 6-LONG-TERM DEBT:

The City of Fairfield has received loans from the Ohio Public Works Commission
(OPWC) and from the Ohio Water Development Authority (OWDA). The repayment of
the loans will be made over a period of five to twenty years.

The OPWC and OWDA loans recorded in the Enterprise Funds as of December 31,
2001 were:

Interest Balance
Issue Rate Outstanding
OPWC Seward Road Water Tank Loan 2.00% - $ 309,494
OWDA Wastewater Improvement Loans 3.79% - 4.12% 11,517,568
$11,827,062

Debt service requirements for the OPWC and OWDA loans for principal and
interest in future years are as follows:

Years Ending
December 31, Principal Interest Total
2002 $ 772,681 $ 464,165 $ 1,236,846
2003 694,295 437,316 1,131,611
2004 613,733 412,643 1,026,376
2005 638,311 388,065 1,026,376
2006 663,874 362,502 1,026,376
2007 - 2011 3,740,125 1,391,755 5,131,880
2012 -2016 4,214,772 580,342 4,795,114
2017 -2019 489,271 25,198 514,469
Totals $11,827,062 $4,061,986 $15,889,048

As of December 31, 2001 the bonds payable of the Enterprise Funds consisted of
the following:

Interest Balance
Issue Rate OQutstanding

Water, Mortgage Revenue Refunding, serial
maturities through the year 2003, term bonds
in the years 2004 and 2005 3.00% - 6.20% $1,290,000
Water, Mortgage Revenue Refunding, serial
maturities through the year 2017, term bonds
in the years 2013 and 2017 3.76% - 5.05% $4,310,000

$5,600,000

The Mortgage Revenue Refunding Bonds are payable only from the revenues of the
Water Funds. The Mortgage Revenue Refunding Bonds are subject to optional
redemption in whole or in part at diminishing premiums from 1% and are collateralized
by substantially all of the property of the Water Funds.
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NOTE 6-LONG-TERM DEBT: (continued)

Debt service requirements for principal and interest in future years are as follows:

Years Ending
December 31, Principal Interest Total
2002 $485,000 $279,875 $764,875
2003 510,000 255,470 765,470
2004 535,000 229,010 764,010
2005 565,000 200,663 765,663
2006 225,000 169,610 394,610
2007 -2011 1,280,000 686,075 1,966,075
2012 -2016 1,625,000 347,713 1,972,713
2017 -2019 375,000 18,938 393,938
Totals $5,600,000 $2,187,354 $7,787,354

The City, as required by the applicable bond indentures, maintains certain cash
balances and investments primarily for debt service and replacement of and improvement
to the water system. As of December 31, 2001, the cash balance restricted as required by
the Bond Indentures are:

Bond & Interest Fund (restricted) $ 726,457
Bond Redemption & Reserve (restricted) 766,237
Totals $1,492,694

As of December 31, 2001, debt recorded in the General Long-Term Debt Account Group
consisted of:

Interest Balance
Issue Rate Outstanding

General Obligation Justice Center Acquisition

Bonds, serial maturities through 2007 7.00% 300,000
General Obligation Fire Station bonds, serial

Maturities through 2010 6.90% 610,000
Various Purpose Bonds, serial maturities through 2015 4.40% 4,035,000
Total General Obligation Bonds $4,945,000
Special Assessment Bonds with

Governmental Commitment
LeSaint Drive, special assessment, serial

Maturities through 2002 12.625% $25,000
Industrial Park, special assessment, serial

Maturities through 2003 9.875% 60,000
Woodridge Blvd. special assessment, serial

Maturities through 2006 7.625% 125,000
Total Special Assessment Debt with

Governmental Commitment $210,000
Total General Obligation Bonds & Special
Assessment Debt with Governmental Commitment $5,155,000
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NOTE 6-LONG-TERM DEBT: (continued)

Debt service requirements for principal and interest in future years are as follows:

Years Ending

December 31, Principal Interest Total
2002 - $ 345,000 $ 264,945 $ 609,945
2003 330,000 242,546 572,546
2004 310,000 222,732 532,732
2005 325,000 205,311 530,311
2006 330,000 187,094 517,094

2007 — 2011 1,465,000 682,715 2,147,715

2012 - 2016 1,385,000 349,776 1,734,776

2017 — 2019 665,000 46,230 711,230
Totals $5,155,000 $2,201,349 $7,356,349

The full faith and credit of the City back the General Obligation Bonds. Special
Assessment Bonds are issued for public improvements to specific properties and are
general obligations of the City to be funded through special assessments on such proper-
ties. The City would be obligated for any debt service, which is not funded by the special
tax assessments. In the event of default, a lien is placed on the property and the county at
atax sale eventually sells it. The City is then reimbursed for any special assessment bond
payments the City made. The City is subject to certain constitutional and statutory general
obligation debt limitations. As of December 31, 2001, the City has not exceeded the debt
limitations.

NOTE 7-DEFEASANCE OF BONDS:

Mortgage Revenue Bonds-In prior years, the City defeased certain Mortgage Revenue
Bonds by the deposit of Treasury Bonds and Notes with Trustees in an amount sufficient
to meet principal and interest payments on the bonds. Accordingly, the trust account
assets and the liability for the defeased bonds are not included in the City's financial
statements. On December 31, 2001, $885,000 of bonds outstanding is considered
defeased.

Special Assessment Bonds-The Special Assessment Fund purchased special assessment
sidewalk bonds issued by the City. The value of the bonds at December 31, 2001 was
$67,614. The transaction has been eliminated for the financial statement purposes by
removing any proceeds from the issuance of debt from the operating statement and the
investment.
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NOTE 8-CHANGES IN LONG-TERM DEBT:

The following is a summary of bond transactions in the General Long-Term Debt
Account of the City for the year ended December 31, 2001.

General Special
Obligations Assessments Total
Bonds Payable at 1/1/01 $5,205,000 $305,000 $5,510,000
Bonds Issued
Bonds Retired (260,000) (95,000) (355,000)
Bonds Payable at 12/31/01 $4,945,000 $210,000 $5,155,000

The following is a summary of bond transactions in the Enterprise Funds of the

City for the year ended December 31, 2001.

Mortgage OPWC and
Revenue Bonds OWDA Loans Total
Amounts Payable at 1/1/01 $6,060,000 $12,975,110 $19,035,110
Amounts Issued
Amounts Retired (460,000) (1,148,048) (1,608,048)
Amounts Payable at 12/31/01 $5,600,000 $11,827,062 $17,427,062

The following is a summary of changes in long-term liabilities for Accrued Sick

Leave for the year ended December 31, 2001.

Accrued
Sick Leave
Balance at 1/1/01 $1,006,917
Amount Incurred 101,537
Amount Retired (143,434)
Balance at 12/31/01 $ 965,020

NOTE 9-INDUSTRIAL AND ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT REVENUE BONDS:

The City issued $55,712,748 in industrial and economic development revenue
bonds for various projects between the years 1973 through 1990. In February of 2000,
the City issued $6,625,000 in industrial development revenue bonds. As of December 31,
2001, $5,486,822 was outstanding. The bonds are not a liability nor are the proceeds of
the issues assets of the City and, accordingly, they are not reflected on the City's financial
records. Debt service on these issues is payable solely from the revenues of the Company

and/or individual for whom the debt was issued.
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NOTE 10-PROPERTY TAXES:

Property taxes are levied against all real and public utility property, and tangible
personal property used for business purposes and located in the City. Real property taxes
are levied each January 1st. The due date and lien date for the 2000 levy was February
15,2001 for all or one-half of the taxes due. The second half due date was July 15, 2001.
Property tax revenues are recognized as areceivable in the year that they are levied. Real
property and public utility taxes are levied based on the assessed values listed at the
beginning of the year. The County Auditor at 35% of the appraised market value
establishes assessed values.

~ The laws of the State of Ohio presently require that all property be revalued no less
than every six years, at any time the County Auditor finds that the true or taxable value
thereof has changed, and in the third calendar year following the year in which a
sexennial reappraisal is completed if ordered by the State Commissioner of Tax
Equalization. Tangible personal property taxes on machinery and equipment and
inventories are assessed on 25% of the statutory basis of these assets. Household goods
and motor vehicles are excluded from this assessment.

The County Treasurer collects property taxes on behalf of all taxing districts in the
County including the City. The County Auditor periodically remits to the City its portion
of the taxes collected. Property taxes may be paid on either an annual or semiannual
basis. The City Charter limits City Council's authority to levy property taxes as provided
by the Constitution and the laws of the State of Ohio.

NOTE 11-EMPLOYEE BENEFITS:

The following note disclosure has been prepared in accordance with Governmental
Accounting Standards Board (GASB) No. 27 "Accounting for Pensions by State and
Local Governmental Employers".

Plan Descriptions - All employees (except policemen and firemen) of the City are
members of the Public Employees Retirement System of Ohio (PERS), a cost-sharing
multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan, administered by the State of Ohio. Po-
lice officers and five full-time firemen are members of the Police and Firemen's Dis-
ability and Pension Fund (PFDPF), a cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit
pension plan, administered by the State of Ohio.
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NOTE 11-EMPLOYEE BENEFITS: (continued)

The PERS provides retirement pension and disability benefits, annual cost of living
adjustments, and death benefits to plan members and beneficiaries. The PFDPF provides
pension and disability benefits annual cost of living adjustments to qualified police and
firemen and survivor and death benefits to qualified spouses, children and dependent
parents. Authority to establish and amend benefits is provided by state statute per Chapter
145 of the Ohio Revised Code for PERS and Chapter 742 of the Ohio Revised

Code for PFDPF.

Eligibility - All full-time employees are eligible and must participate in the State of Ohio
PERS or PFDPF plans. Prior to 1991, employees (except policemen and firemen)
working less than 20 hours per week or students working less than 1,500 hours per
calendar year had the option to exclude themselves from membership.

Effective in 1991, all exemptions were eliminated except for certain qualified
students and PERS retirants and retirants from any other Ohio system that are coming
into PERS-covered employment to contribute to PERS from the first day of employment.

Funding Policy - The Ohio Revised Code provides statutory authority for the employee
and employer contributions. Employees covered under PERS are required to contribute
8.5% of their covered payroll. The current required employer contribution rate for the
Cityis 13.55% of covered payroll. The City's contributions to PERS for the years ending
December 31, 1999, 2000 and 2001 were $916,951, $880,334 and $970,855 respectively,
equal to the required contributions for each year.

Employees covered under PFDPF are required to contribute 10% of their covered
payroll. The total police employer contribution rate under PFDPF is 19.5% of covered
payroll and the total firemen's employer contribution rate under PFDPF is 24% of covered
payroll. The City’s contributions to PFDPF for the years ending December 31, 1999,
2000 and 2001 were $611,137, $692,824 and $864,884 respectively, equal to the required
contributions for each year.

The City's current-year covered payroll for employees under PERS was $8,144,676.
The City's current-year covered payroll for employees under PFDPF was $3,328,852 for
Police and $1,010,162 for Fire. The City's payroll for the year ended December 31, 2001
was $13,142,782.

PERS and PFDPF issue stand-alone financial reports that include financial |
statement and required supplementary information. The PERS financial report may be
obtained by making a written request to the Public Employees Retirement System of
Ohio, 277 East Town Street, Columbus, Ohio 43215-4642 or by calling (614) 466-2085.
The PFDPF financial report may be obtained by making a written request to the Police
and Firemen's Disability and Pension Fund of Ohio, 140 East Town Strect, Columbus,
Ohio 43215-5164 or by calling (614) 228-2975.
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NOTE 12-POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS:

In addition to the pension benefits described in Note 11, both the Public Employees
Retirement System (PERS) and the Police and Firemen's Disability and Pension Fund
(PFDPF) provide postretirement health care coverage that is considered to be Other Post-
employement Benefits (OPEB) as described in GASB Statement No. 12.

PERS provides health care coverage to age and service retirees with ten or more
years of qualifying Ohio service credit and primary survivor recipients of such retirants.
Health care coverage for disability recipients is available. A portion of each employer's
contribution to PERS is set-aside for the funding of post retirement health care. The Ohio
Revised Code provides statutory authority for employer PERS contributions. The PERS
health care funding and accounting is on an "advance funded" basis. The 2001 employer
contribution rate for the City was 13.55% of covered payroll; 4.3% of that was the portion
used to fund health care for the year 2001. For the year ended December 31, 2001, the
City's actual contribution to fund PERS OPEB was $308,052.

The Ohio Revised Code provides the statutory authority allowing PFDPF's Board
of Trustees to provide health care coverage to all eligible individuals. The PFDPF
provides postretirement health care coverage to any person who received or is eligible to
receive a monthly benefit check or is a spouse or eligible dependent child of such person.
An eligible dependent child is any child under the age of 18 whether or not the child is
attending school or under the age of 22 if attending full-time or on a 2/3 basis. The Ohio
Revised Code provides that PFDPF health care cost paid from the funds of the PEDPF
shall be included in the employer's contribution rate. The total police employer contribu-
tion rate is 19.5% of covered payroll and the total firemen's employer contribution rate is
24% of covered payroll.

The PERS OPEB is financed through employer contributions and investment
earnings there on. The contributions allocated to retiree health care, along with
investment income on allocated assets and periodic adjustments in health care provisions
are expected to be sufficient to sustain the program indefinitely.

PERS unaudited estimated net assets available for future OPEB payments at
December 31, 2000, were $11,735.9 million. The number of active contributing
participants was 411,076. The actuarially accrued liability and the unfunded actuarial
accrued liability, based on the actuarial cost method used, were $14,364.6 million and
$2,628.7 million, respectively.

The PFDPF health care funding and accounting is on a pay-as-you-go basis.
Currently, 7.5% of covered payroll, the Board-defined allocation issued to pay retiree
health care expense. In addition, since July 1, 1992, most retirees have been required to
contribute a portion of the cost of their health care coverage through a deduction from
their monthly benefit payment. The number of participants eligible to receive health care
benefits as of December 31, 2000 is 12,853 for police and 10,037 for firemen.
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NOTE 12-POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS: (continued)

For the year ended December 31, 2001, the City's contribution to fund OPEB was
$241,613 for police and $74,280 for firemen, which was exactly equal to the required
contribution. The PFDPF's total health care expenses for the year ended December 31,
2000, the date of the last actuarial valuation available was $106,160,054, which was net
of member contributions of $5,657,431.

NOTE 13-ACCRUED VACATION AND SICK LEAVE:

Vacation is accumulated based upon length of service at rates from 3.1 hours to 7.7
hours per bi-weekly (80 hours) pay period for full time City employees. Vacation
accumulation may not exceed three years. Any excess is eliminated from the employee's
accumulated balance. In the case of death, termination, or retirement an employee (or his
estate) is paid for his unused vacation to a maximum of the three-year accrual. It is the
City's policy to accrue vacation leave benefits in the period they are earned in both the
Governmental and the Proprietary Funds.

All full time City employees are credited with 96 sick hours at the beginning of
each year. Sick leave accumulation may not exceed 960 hours. Any excess over the 960
maximum is paid to the employee. In the case of death, termination, or retirement an
employee, depending on length of service with the City, is paid for his unused sick leave
up to a maximum of 960 hours. At December 31, 2001, liabilities of $609,631 and
$965,020 for accrued sick leave benefits have been recorded in the Proprietary Fund
Type and the General Long-Term Debt Account Group, respectively, representing the
City's commitment to fund such costs from operations.

NOTE 14-CAPITAL LEASES AND SERVICE AGREEMENTS:

The City has entered into various long-term maintenance and service agreements.
Expenditures under these non-cancelable agreements were $2,663,176 in 2001.

Minimum future payments as of December 31, 2001 are:

Garbage Paramedical

Years Collection Services Total

2002 $1,228,286 $1,094,205 $2,322,491
2003 1,132,503 1,132,503
2004 1,172,140 1,172,140
2005 1,213,166 1,213,166
2006 345,643 345,643
Totals $1,228,286 $4,957,657 $6,185,943
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NOTE 14-CAPITAL LEASSES AND SERVICE AGREEMENTS: (continued)

During 2001, the City entered into an agreement for the lease of telephone equipment.
The lease meets the criteria of a capital lease as defined by Statement of Financial
Accounting Standards No. 13 “accounting for Leases,” which defines a capital lease
generally as one which transfers benefits and risks of ownership to the lessee. As such,
$394,645 has been capitalized as equipment in the General Fixed Assets Account Group
at December 31, 2001.

The following is a schedule of future minimum lease payments under the capital lease
with the present value of the net minimum lease payments as of December 31,2001 are:

Years Total
2002 $ 89,269
2003 , 89,269
2004 89,269
2005 89,269
2006 74,390
Total minimum lease payments 431,466
Less: Amount representing interest (48,468)
Present value of net minimum lease payments $ 382,998

NOTE 15-SEGMENT INFORMATION FOR ENTERPRISE FUNDS:

Included in the services provided by the City that are financed primarily by user
charges are water utility, sewer utility and recreation facilities. The key financial
information for the year ended December 31, 2001 for these non-similar enterprise
activities is as follows:

Water Sewer Recreational Solid Waste
Utility Utility Facilities Management Totals
Operating Revenues $3,233,695 $3,485,241 $1,309,222 $1,485,693 $9,513,851
Operating Expenses:
Depreciation and
Amortization $541,049 $1,000,326 $188,893 $1,730,268
Other Expenses $2,703,915 $2,418,935 $1,363,303 $1,779,187 $8,265,340
Operating Income(Loss) $(11,269) $65,980 $(242,974) $(293,494) $(481,757)
Net Income(Loss) $322,972 $32,285 $(266,566) $14,918 $103,609
Property, Plant and
Equipment Additions
And Deletions $832,473 $1,657,903 $1,691,562 $4,181,983
Net Working Capital $9,724,978 $4,135,909 $(2,213,592) $112,361 $11,759,656
Total Assets $30,611,248 $36,009,539 $5,454,121 $264,643 $72,339,551
Notes Payable $250,000 $2,300,000 $2,5500,000
Bonds Payable and
Other Long-Term
Liabilities $5,909,494 $11,517,568 $17,427,062
Total Equity $24,178,806 $23,877,165 $3,016,430 $112,361 $51,184,762
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NOTE 16-RESERVES AND DESIGNATIONS OF EQUITY:

The following is a list of all reserves used by the City and a description of each:

Reserved for Encumbrances - an account used to segregate a portion of fund
balance for expenditure upon vendor performance.

Reserved for Debt Service - an account used to segregate a portion of fund
balance for debt service resources legally restricted for the payment of long term debt
principal and interest amounts maturing in future years.

Reserved for Claims - an account used to segregate a portion of fund balance to
indicate that resources have been restricted for the payment of medical insurance.
Designated portions of fund balance indicate tentative future spending plans, which may
be changed and are subject to subsequent authorization before expenditures can be made.

NOTE 17-RISK MANAGEMENT:

Description: The City carries insurance to cover general liability risks, fire protection,
police professional liability, automobile fleet and errors and omissions for public
officials. The City has established an Employees Benefits Fund to account for cost of the
City's self-insured dental care claims and the payment of insurance premiums for medical
benefits. A third party administrator who furnishes claims review and processing
administers the program. City Funds are charged a premium based on the number of
employees participating in the Dental and Health Benefits Plan. The "premium"
payments are accounted for as an expenditure in the paying fund and as a revenue in an
internal service fund.

For insured programs there have been no significant reductions in insurance
coverage. Settlement amounts have not exceeded insurance coverage for the current year
or the three prior years.

Claims Liabilities: The City records an estimated liability for health claims against the
City. Claims liabilities are based on estimates of the ultimate cost of reported claims and
an estimate for claims incurred but not reported on historical experience.

Unpaid Claims Liabilities: The following figures represent the changes in medical and
dental claims liabilities for the City from January 1, 2000 to December 31, 2001:

Claims Liability, 1/1/00 $ 12,542
Claims net of changes in estimates 1,240,817
Payments (1,240,114)
Claims Liability, 12/31/00 13,245
Claims net of changes in estimates 1,450,473
Payments (1,456,724)
Claims Liability, 12/31/01 $ 6,99
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NOTE 18-DEFICIT FUND BALANCE:

The following is a list of funds, which have deficit fund balances:

The Street, Construction, Maintenance and Repair Fund (Special Revenue Fund)
has a deficit fund balance of ($74,085) due to the recording of liabilities for Accounts
Payable and Accrued Payroll, Vacation and Sick Leave.

The Symmes Road Improvement Fund (Capital Project Fund) - has a deficit fund
balance of ($2,991,199) due to recording a liability for Accounts and Notes Payable.
Transfers from other funds not susceptible to accrual at December 31, 2001will be used
to pay this contract.

The Municipal Garage Fund (Internal Service Fund) has a deficit fund balance of
($1,140) due to the recording of liabilities for Accounts Payable and Accrued Payroll,
Vacation and Sick Leave.

NOTE 19-CHANGE IN ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLE

For 2001, the City implemented GASB Statement No. 33, “Accounting and Financial Reporting
for Non-exchange Transactions” and GASB Statement No. 36, “Recipient Reporting for Certain
Shared Non-exchange Revenue.” These statements establish accounting and financial reporting
standards for non-exchange transactions involving financial or capital resources. The timing for
the recognition of assets, liabilities, and expenditures/expenses resulting from non-exchange
transactions will be the same whether the accrual or the modified accrual basis of accounting is
required. However, for revenue recognition to occur on the modified accrual basis, the criteria
established fro accrual basis revenue recognition must be met and the revenues must be available.
At December 31, 2000, there was no effect on fund balance as a result of implementing GASB 33
and 36.

NOTE 20-CONTRACTUAL COMMITMENTS

The City had several outstanding or planned construction projects as of December 31,
2001. Allthe projects are commitments of the City’s capital project fund. These projects
are evidenced by contractual commitments with contractors and include:

Commitment
Project Spent-to-date Remaining
Symmes Road Extension Project $ 4,200,000 $ 800,000
Symmes Road Widening 640,794 658,161
Reconditioning & Rechasis of Fire Rescue Apparatus 0 256,244
Concrete Sidewalk/Apron Repair 206,132 231,686
Wastewater Digester Cover Replacement 652,700 174,780
Totals $ 5,699,626 $ 2,120,871
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NOTE 21-CLLAIMS AND CONTINGENCIES:

Contingencies Under Grant Programs: The City has received federal and state grants
for specific purposes that are subject to review by the grantor agencies. Such reviews
could lead to requests for reimbursements to the grant agency for expenditures disallowed
under the terms of the grant. City management believes such disallowances, in any, will
be minor.

Judgments and Claims: There are several pending lawsuits and claims against the City

arising in the normal course of business. City Management is of the opinion that any
resulting liability will not have a material effect upon the City’s financial position.

NOTE 22-SUBSEQUENT EVENT:

On May 29, 2002, the City issued $6,800,000 of Various Purpose General Obligation
Bonds, dated May 15, 2002, interest rates range from 4.00% to 4.90%. The bond
proceeds have been programmed to retire outstanding short-term debt issued for road
improvements and the construction of recreational facilities, which mature during 2002.
Repayment of the debt service on the bonds is scheduled to begin December 1, 2002.
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GENERAL OPERATING FUND
FINANCIAL STATMENTS

The General Fund is the general operating fund of the City and is used to account for all
revenues and expenditures not required to be accounted for in other funds. Revenues are
primarily derived from income and property taxes. Functions financed from the General
Fund include public safety, government administration, community environment and
recreational activities.
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STATEMENT A-1
CITY OF FAIRFIELD

COMPARATIVE BALANCE SHEET

GENERAL FUND

DECEMBER 31, 2001 AND 2000

ASSETS

Equity in Pooled Cash and Deposits
Equity in Pooled Investments
Receivables (Net of allowance for
estimated uncollectibles)
Accounts Receivable
Accrued Interest
Taxes

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES & FUND BALANCE

Liabilities:
Accounts Payable
Accrued Payroll, Vacation & Sick Leave
Deferred Revenues

" TOTAL LIABILITIES
Fund Balance:

Reserved for Encumbrances
Unreserved

TOTAL FUND BALANCE

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE
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2001 2000
$ 1,987,965 $ 301,192
5,519,417 6,054,558
29,231 11,103
71,160 66,447
2,576,306 1,963,681
$ 10,184,079  $ 8,396,981
$ 144,843 $ 82,103
761,072 757,691
1,480,426 818,602
2,386,341 1,658,396
818,400 522,932
6,979,338 6,215,653
7,797,738 6,738,585
$ 10,184,079 $ 8,396,981




STATEMENT A-2
CITY OF FAIRFIELD
COMPARATIVE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

GENERAL FUND

FOR YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2001 AND 2000

REVENUES

Taxes

Licenses and Permits
intergovernmental Revenues
Charges for Services

Fines and Forfeitures
Investment Earnings

Special Assessments

All Other Revenues

TOTAL REVENUES

EXPENDITURES
Current A :
Security of Persons and Property
Streets and Transporation
Public Health & Welfare Services
Leisure Activities
Community Environment
Basic Utility Services’
General Government
Capital Outlay

TOTAL EXPENDITURES

Excess of Revenues
Over Expenditures

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Proceeds from Capital Lease
Proceeds from Sale of Assets
Operating Transfers-Out

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Excess of Revenues Over Expenditures

and Other Financing Uses
Fund Balance, Beginning of Year

Fund Balance, End of Year

2001 2000
$ 12,710,311 . $ 12,116,402
349,090 341,570
2,791,692 2,751,643
450,036 399,394
735,069 668,036
480,355 516,276
16,278 7,358
" 686,574 260,267
18,219,405 17,060,946
6,271,610 5,870,003
437,203 250,000
26,731 27,315
994,972 842,935
886,016 915,681
401,395 402,185
5,019,834 4,202,259
1,625,168 639,908
15,662,929 13,150,286
2,556,476 3,910,660
394,645
208,032
(2,100,000) (3,750,000)
(1,497,323) (3,750,000)
1,059,153 160,660
6,738,585 6,577,925
$ 7,797,738 $ 6,738,585
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SCHEDULE A-3
CITY OF FAIRFIELD

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
GENERAL FUND-BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)
FOR YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2001
With Comparative Actual Amounts for the Year Ended December 31, 2000

REVENUES

Taxes

Licenses and Permits
Intergovernmental Revenues
Charges for Services

Fines and Forfeitures
Investment Earnings

Special Assessments

All Other Revenues

TOTAL REVENUES

EXPENDITURES
Current
Security of Persons & Property
Police Department
Public Health & Welfare Services
Leisure Activities
Parks Administration
Parks Maintenance
Marsh Lake Park
Community Environment
Pfanning Department
Building Inspection
Basic Utility Services
General Government
Councii
Office of the Mayor
Office of City Manager
Department of Law
Human Resources
Administrative Support
Finance Office
Income Tax
Municipal Court
Public Works Administration
Construction Services
Municipal Building
Justice Center

TOTAL EXPENDITURES

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
over Expenditures

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Operating Transfers-Out

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
and Other Financing Sources
(Uses) over Expenditures

Fund Balance, Beginning of Year

Prior Year Encumbrances Appropriated

Fund Balanée, End of Year

2001
VARIANCE 2000
FAVORABLE e
BUDGET ACTUAL (UNFAVORABLE) ACTUAL
$12,485,808 $13,057,109 $571,301 $12,163,880
357,800 349,090 (8,710) 341,570
3,139,208 2,791,692 (347,516) 2,751,643
426,800 463,850 37,050 428,090
663,200 735,069 71,869 717,390
530,300 475,642 (54,658) 529,995
10,000 16,278 6,278 7,358
309,400 1,043,406 734,006 414,405
17,922,516 18,932,136 1,009,620 17,354,331
6,869,710 6,428,281 441,429 6,085,771
35,000 26,731 8,269 27,315
346,068 336,713 9,355 277,311
570,192 548,871 21,321 456,763
122,871 110,446 12,425 113,202
398,521 372,224 26,297 414,768
599,026 523,011 76,015 563,527
406,730 401,395 5,335 402,185
199,142 176,791 22,351 178,620
14,670 11,803 2,867 9,955
392,660 369,457 23,203 318,299
298,500 298,251 249 267,160
181,130 171,405 9,725 143,487
3,998,030 3,729,021 269,009 2,228,782
704,478 663,085 41,393 461,357
361,603 306,562 55,041 281,456
1,246,652 1,132,145 114,507 956,090
160,688 139,274 21,414 137,041
548,254 500,926 47,328 409,816
161,810 151,201 10,609 149,709
205,640 164,051 41,589 192,521
17,821,375 16,561,644 1,259,731 14,075,135
101,141 2,370,492 2,269,351 3,279,196
(2,100,000) (2,100,000) (3,750,000)
(1,998,859) 270,492 2,269,351 (470,804)
5,750,716 5,750,716 5,666,817
522,932 522,932 554,703
$4,274,789 $6,544,140 $2,269,351 $5,750,716
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SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
COMBINING FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Special Revenue Funds are established to account for revenues from specific sources legally
restricted to expenditures for specific purposes. A description of the City's special revenue funds
follows:

Street Construction, Maintenance and Repair Fund - this fund is used to account for 92.5% of
the City's share of state gasoline taxes and motor vehicle license fees. State Law requires that
such monies be spent on street construction and maintenance.

State Highway Improvement Fund - this fund is used to account for the remaining 7.5% of the
City's share of state gasoline taxes and motor vehicle license fees. State law requires that such
monies be spent on maintenance and improvement of state highways within the City.

Fire Levy Fund - this fund is used to account for monies received from property taxes
specifically earmarked for fire protection by a levy passed by the City's electorate.

Paramedical Services Levy Fund - this fund is used to account for monies received from
property taxes specifically earmarked for paramedical services by a levy passed by the electorate.
Tax Recreation Fund - this fund is used to account for monies received from residential building
permits specifically collected for the purpose of providing funds for recreational activities and
facilities. v
County Motor Vehicle Registration Fund - this fund is used to account for the City's share of
motor vehicle registration fees. State law requires that such monies be spent on street
construction and maintenance of certain specified roads.

Municipal Motor Vehicle Registration Fund - this fund is used to account for the motor
vehicle registration fees authorized by the City. State law requires that such monies be spent on
street construction, operation and maintenance of City roads.

Law Enforcement and Education Fund - this fund is used to account for monies received from
court fines imposed for drivers convicted for driving under the influence of drugs and alcohol.
Monies generated under this fund shall be used for enforcement and education of the public of
such dangers.

Drug and Alcohol Treatment Fund - this fund is used to account for monies received from
court fines imposed for drivers convicted for driving under the influence of drugs and alcohol.
Monies generated under this fund shall be used for treatment of chemically dependent drivers.

Law Enforcement Fund - this fund is used to account for monies received from the proceeds of
the City's law enforcement activities, which participate with federal agencies in the arrest, and
seizure of assets. _

Local Law Enforcement Fund - this fund is used to account for monies received from the
federal government under the Community Development Block Grant program for the renovation -
of public facilities.

Probation Services Fund - this fund is used to account for monies received from court fines.
Monies generated under this fund shall be used for probation services provided by the Court.

Court Computer Fund - this fund is used to account for monies received from court fines.
Monies generated under this fund shall be used for computer related expenses of the Court
system.

Special Projects Fund - this fund is used to account for monies received from court fines.
Monies generated under this fund shall be used for special projects of the Court system.
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DEBT SERVICE FUNDS
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Debt Service Fund accounts for servicing all debt of the City, which is not serviced
by the Proprietary Funds.

General Bond Retirement Fund - this fund accumulates monies for the payment of
long-term and short-term debt issued without a vote of the people. Transfers from the
.2% Capital Improvement and .3% Street Improvement Funds support this fund.

Special Assessment Fund - this fund accounts for payment of bonds issued for

improvements deemed to benefit specific properties against which assessments are
levied.
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Equity in Pooled Cash and Deposits
Equity in Pooled investments

Receivables

ASSETS

Accrued interest
Special Assessments
Due from Other Funds

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES & FUND BALANCES

Liabilities:

Accounts Payable

Interest Payable

Deferred Revenues

TOTAL LIABILITIES

Fund Balance:

Reserved for Debt Service
TOTAL FUND BALANCE

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES

STATEMENT C-1

CITY OF FAIRFIELD

COMBINING BALANCE

SHEET

DEBT SERVICE FUNDS
DECEMBER 31, 2001

TOTALS
-GENERAL BOND SPECIAL
RETIREMENT ASSESSMENT 2001 2000
FUND FUND
$ 373,217 $ 487,603 $ 860,820 $ 88,091
567,614 567,614 1,258,940
2,942 2,942 7,631
250,638 250,638 376,012
167,404 167,404 44,469
$ 540,621 $ 1,308,797 $ 1,849,418 $ 1,775,143
$ 360
$ 167,404 $ 1,651 168,955 46,853
250,638 250,638 376,012
167,404 252,189 419,593 423,225
373,217 1,056,608 1,429,825 1,351,918
373,217 1,056,608 1,429,825 1,351,918
$ 540,621 .$ 1,308,797 $ 1,849,418 $ 1,775,143
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REVENUES

Special Assessments
Interest Earnings
All Other Revenues
TOTAL REVENUES
EXPENDITURES

Debt Service

Principal Repayment

Interest & Fiscal Charges

TOTAL EXPENDITURES

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over Expenditures

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Operating Transfers-in

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
and Other Financing Sources
(Uses) Over Expenditures

Fund Balance, Beginning of Year

Fund Balance, End of Year

STATEMENT C-2
CITY OF FAIRFIELD
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

DEBT SERVICE FUNDS

FOR YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2001

. TOTALS
GENERAL BOND SPECIAL
RETIREMENT ASSESSMENT 2001 2000
FUND FUND
$ 153,750 $ 153,750 $ 172,832
$ 14,271 47,885 62,156 83,498
7,456 7,456 1,953
21,727 201,635 223,362 258,283
260,000 95,000 355,000 350,000
440,050 32,021 472,071 361,833
700,050 127,021 827,071 711,833
(678,323) 74,614 (603,709) (453,550)
681,616 681,616 561,082
681,616 681,616 561,082
3,293 74,614 77,907 107,532
369,924 981,994 1,351,918 1,244,386
$ 373,217 $ 1,056,608 $ 1,429,825

$ 1,351,918
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CAPITAL PROJECT FUNDS
COMBINING FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Capital Project Funds are established to account for revenues and expenditures related to

the acquisition or construction of capital facilities not financed by proprietary funds.
Capital facilities are defined as major and permanent in nature. The City's capital project
funds are described below;

.3% Street Improvement Fund - this fund is used to account for the construction and
repair of the City's streets. Financing has been derived from one-tenth of the City's
income tax.

.2% Capital Improvement Fund - this fund is used to account for the acquisition,
construction or the debt service thereupon of assets with a useful life of five (5) years or
more. Financing has been derived from two-tenths of the City's income tax.

Flood Protection Fund - this fund is used to account for the construction of a flood

protection project, which provides protection from stormwater runoff. Financing is
derived from grants from the federal government, the state government and the issuance
of notes.

State Issue II Fund - this fund is used to account for projects financed through the
State of Ohio Public Works Commission. Financing is derived from grants from the
state government and local share participation.

Downtown Development Fund - this fund is used to account for the construction of

major improvements and the development to the City's downtown area. Financing is
derived from grants from state governments, transfers from the General Fund and
investments earnings.

Symmes Road Extension Project Fund - this fund is used to account for the
construction of the Symmes Road Extension, which will provide an eastbound
connection to Interstate 75. Financing is derived from transfers from the General Fund
and investments earnings.
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ENTERPRISE FUNDS
COMBINING FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Enterprise funds are established to account for operations where the intention is to
finance such operations primarily through user charges, or where the City has decided
that the periodic determination of revenues, expenses and net income is appropriate.

The City has four enterprise funds, which are described below:

Water Utility Fund - this fund is used to account for the operations of the City's water
utility, revenues of which come from customers, based on usage and rates authorized by
City Council.

Sewer Utility Fund - this fund is used to account for the operations of the City's sewer
utility. Sources of revenues for this fund come from utility service charges to customers,
based on usage and rates authorized by City Council.

Recreation Facilities Fund - this fund is used to account for the operations of the City's
golf course, swimming pool and other recreational facilities, revenues from which come
from customers, based on a rate authorized by the Parks Commission.

Solid Waste Management Fund - this fund is used to account for the operations of the

City's solid waste collection and recycling service. Sources of revenues for this fund
come from service charges to customers, based on rates authorized by City Council.
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INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Internal Service funds are established to account for goods and services furnished by a
designated agency to other departments within the same government unit on a cost
reimbursement basis. The accrual basis of accounting is used for these funds and the
measurement focus on income determination.

Employee’s Benefits Fund - this fund is used to account for the cost of the City's self-
msured health care operations.

Compensated Leave Fund - this fund is used to account for funding the accrued
liability of compensated leave of employees.

Municipal Garage Fund - this fund is used to account for the cost of maintaining the
City’s equipment and automotive fleet.
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FIDUCIARY FUNDS
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Fiduciary Funds are established to account for funds held by the City as trustee or
agent for individuals, private organizations, other governmental units and/or other funds.

Employee’s Trust Fund - this fund is used to account for revenues and expenditures
related to the employee recreational activities. Revenues are generated from
commissions from the City's vending machines located in the employees' lunchrooms.

Municipal Court Fund - this fund is used to account for funds collected by the

Municipal Court until such time as the funds can be distributed to individuals, private
organizations, other governmental units and/or other funds.
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STATEMENT G-1
CITY OF FAIRFIELD
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
FIDUCIARY FUNDS
DECEMBER 31, 2001

EXPENDABLE
TRUST FUND AGENCY FUND
- TOTALS
EMPLOYEES MUNICIPAL -
TRUST COURT 2001 2000
ASSETS FUND FUND
Equity in Pooled Cash $2,486 $36,960 $39,446 $43,684
TOTAL ASSETS $2,486 $36,960 $39,446 $43,684
LIABILITIES & FUND BALANCES
LIABILITIES
Deposits Payable ' $36,960 $36,960 $41,198
TOTAL LIABILITIES 36,960 36,960 41,198
FUND BALANCES
Fund Balance
Unreserved
Undesignated 2,486 2,486 2,486
TOTAL FUND BALANCE 2,486 2,486 2,486
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES $2,486 $36,960 $39,446 $43,684
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STATEMENT G-2
CITY OF FAIRFIELD
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
EXPENDABLE TRUST FUNDS
FOR YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2001

TOTALS
EMPLOYEES
TRUST 2001 2000
REVENUES FUND
All Other Revenues
Commissions $200
TOTAL REVENUES 200
EXPENDITURES
Cur'rent
General Government
Non-Departmental 174
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 174
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over Expenditures 26
Fund Balance, Beginning of Year $2,486 $2,486 2,460
Fund Balance, End of Year $2,486 $2,486 $2,486
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SCHEDULE G-3
CITY OF FAIRFIELD
COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
AGENCY FUND
FOR YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2001

MUNICIPAL COURT BALANCE BALANCE
11/01 ADDITIONS DEDUCTIONS 12/31/01
ASSETS
Cash -+ $41,198 $1,434,964 $1,439,202 $36,960
LIABILITIES
Deposits Payable $41,198 $1,434,964 $1,439,202 $36,960
TOTAL LIABILITIES $41,198 $1,434,964 $1,439,202 $36,960
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GENERAL FIXED ASSETS ACCOUNT GROUP

The General Fixed Assets Account Group accounts for fixed assets not used in the
proprietary fund operations.
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STATEMENT H-1
CITY OF FAIRFIELD
COMPARATIVE SCHEDULE OF GENERAL FIXED ASSETS
DECEMBER 31, 2001 AND 2000

GENERAL FIXED ASSETS: 2001 2000
Land $4,154,175 $4,154,175
Buildings 22,837,996 18,292,449
Equipment 9,582,795 9,239,068

TOTAL GENERAL FIXED ASSETS $36,574,966 $31,685,692

INVESTMENT IN GENERAL FIXED ASSETS BY SOURCE:

General Fund $3,115,860 $2,898,879
Special Revenue Funds 6,529,394 6,595,603
Capital Project Funds 26,929,712 22,191,210

INVESTMENT IN GENERAL FIXED ASSETS $36,574,966 $31,685,692
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GENERAL LONG-TERM DEBT ACCOUNT GROUP

The General Long-Term Debt Account Group accounts for the unmatured principal of
bonds or other forms of non-current or long-term general obligation indebtedness that is
not a specific liability of any proprietary fund.

78



STATEMENT I-1
CITY OF FAIRFIELD

COMPARATIVE SCHEDULE OF GENERAL LONG-TERM DEBT

DECEMBER 31, 2001 AND 2000

AMOUNTS AVAILABLE AND TO BE PROVIDED

FOR THE RETIREMENT OF GENERAL
LONG-TERM DEBT

Amount Available in Debt
Service Fund

Amount to be Provided to Retire
Long-Term Debt

Amount to be Provided to Retire
Other Obligations

TOTAL AVAILABLE AND TO BE PROVIDED

GENERAL LONG-TERM DEBT

Accrued Payroll, Vacation and
Sick Leave
Capital Lease
General Obligation Bonds
Special Assessment Bonds
with Governmental Commitment

TOTAL LONG-TERM DEBT
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2001 2000
$1,429,825 $1,351,918
3,725,175 4,158,082
1,348,018 1,006,917
$6,503,018 $6,516,917
$965,020 $1,006,917
382,998
4,945,000 5,205,000
210,000 305,000
$6,503,018

$6,516,917
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Statistical Section
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Table 3

CITY OF FAIRFIELD
BILLING AND COLLECTION OF SPECIAL ASSESSMENTS
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS (1992-2001)

Assessments

Collected as

a Percent of

Assessments Assessments Uncollected Assessments

Year Billed Collected Amount Billed

1992 $ 220,778 3 216,732 $ 4,046 98.17%
1993 198,791 207,808 (9,017) 104.54%
1994 218,428 188,408 30,020 86.26%
1995 187,457 180,412 7,045 96.24%
1996 174,090 169,142 4,948 97.16%
1997 186,398 180,717 5,681 96.95%
1998 208,999 188,127 20,872 90.01%
1999 195,340 202,191 (6,851) 103.51%
2000 188,119 186,351 1,768 99.06%
2001 185,219 174,797 10,422 94.37%

SOURCE: County Auditor's Office, Butler County.
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Table 10

CITY OF FAIRFIELD
RATIO OF ANNUAL DEBT SERVICE EXPENDITURES FOR GENERAL
OBLIGATION DEBT TO TOTAL GENERAL GOVERNMENTAL EXPENDITURES
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS (1992-2001)

Ratio of Debt

Fiscal Total Servige to
Year General Obligation Debt Service Payments (a) General Total General
Ended Principal Interest Total Expenditures Expenditures
1992 $ 425,000 $ 342,740 $ 767,740 $ 11,259,191 6.82%
1993 430,000 311,570 741,570 10,275,749 7.22%
1994 430,000 259,043 689,043 11,516,380 5.98%
1995 435,000 - 224,160 659,160 12,720,442 5.18%
1996 435,000 188,914 623,914 13,897,752 4.49%
1997 435,000 153,795 588,795 13,972,329 4.21%
1998 440,000 118,478 » 558,478 | 14,808,539 | 3.77%
1999 240,000 119,098 359,098 16,874,926 2.13%
2000 250,000 289,385 539,385 18,681,113 2.89%
2001 260,000 440,050 700,050 21,492,559 3.26%

SOURCE: City of Fairfield Finance Department.

NOTES: (a) For General Obligation Debt, Bonds and Notes payable from ad valorem and taxes only.
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Table 11

CITY OF FAIRFIELD
COMPUTATION OF LEGAL DEBT MARGIN
December 31, 2001

Total of all City Debt Qutstanding $29,632,062
Total Debt subject to 10.5% and 5.5% Debt Limitation $9,655,000

Less Applicable Debt Service Fund 373,217
Net Indebtedness subject to 10.5% and 5.5% Debt Limitation $9,281,783
Assessed Valuation of the City (2000 for 2001 Collection) $834,028,195
10.5% of Assessed Valuation (Maximum Voted Debt Allowed) $87,572,960
Total Debt Outstanding subject to 10.5% Debt Limitation 4 9,281,783

Legal 10.5% Margin $78,291,177
5.5% of Assessed Valuation (Maximum Unvoted Debt Allowed) $45,871,551
Total Debt Outstanding Subject to 5.5% Debt Limitation 9,281,783

Legal 5.5% Margin $36,589,768

NOTE: (a) Direct Debt Limitation Based on Section 133, The Uniform Bond
Act of the Ohio Revised Code.

(b) Assessed Value from the County Auditor's Office, Butler County.
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Table 13

CITY OF FAIRFIELD

PROPERTY VALUES, FINANCIAL INSTITUTION DEPOSITS -

AND BUILDING PERMIT VALUES
FOR THE LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS (1992-2001)

IN MILLIONS
Fiscal Financial Building
Year Property Institutions Permit
Ended Values(a) Deposits(b) Values(c)
1992 $1,649.9 $724.2 $21.7
1993 1,652.5 711.7 37.6
1994 1,749.7 737.7 35.0
1995 1,753.9 800.6 45.0
1996 1,908.8 783.3 92.1
1997 2,085.9 815.4 57.2
1998 12,1653 864.1 81.3
1999 22001 913.2 77.9
2000 2,416.0 923.6 24.6
2001 2,423.8 1.136.9 32.9

SOURCE: (a) County Auditor's Office, Butler County.
(b) Federal Reserve Bank of Cleveland.

(c) City of Fairfield Building Inspection Division.
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Table 14

CITY OF FAIRFIELD
TEN LARGEST TAXPAYERS
December 31, 2001

TAXPAYER

TYPE OF PROPERTY

ASSESSED VALUATION PERCENTAGE

1. Cincinnati Gas & Electric Company

2. CFC Investment Company

3. Meijer Incorporated

4 Cincinnat Bell Telephone

5 Sam Boymel! Trustee

6 Prudential Insurance Company

7 M. Bohlke Veneer Corp.

8 Cincinnati Oxford Association

9 Ohio Causalty Insurance

10 California Teachers Retirment System
TOTAL

Total Assessed Value

SOURCE: County Auditor's Office, Butler County.

Utility

In'surancé

Retail Merchant
Telephone Utility

Real Estate Management
Insurance/Real Estate
Wood Products

Real Estate Management
Insurance

Real Estate Management

94

$25,4286,300
14,555,800
6,870,430
6,341,290
6,298,390
5,386,230
5,117,250
4,767,360
4,544,210

4,543,630

$83,850,890

$834,028,195

3.05% |
1.75%
0.82%
0.76%
0.76%
0.65%
0.61%
0.57%
0.54%
0.54%

10.05%



Table 15

‘CITY OF FAIRFIELD
DEMOGRAPHIC STATISTICS
December 31, 2001

Butler % Change
‘ Fairfield % Change During County During the
Year Population (a) the Period Population Period
1960 9,734 199,076
1970 14,680 50.81% 266,207 33.72%
1980 30,777 109.65% 258,787 -2.79%
1990 : 39,729 29.09% 291,479 12.63%
1991 40,326 1.50% 299,808 2.86%
1992 40,528 0.50% 305,690 1.96%
1993 40,730, 0.50% 311,907 2.03%
1994 40,934 0.50% 315,927 1.29%
1995 41,139 1 0.50% 319,603 1.16%
1996 41,344 0.50% 323,519 1.23%
1997 41,551 0.50% 327,081 1.10%
1998 41,759 0.50% ’330,428 1.02%
1999 41,968 0.50% 331,065 . 0.19%
2000 _ 42,097 0.31% - 332,807 0.53%
2001 43,149 2.50% 338,573 1.73%

SOURCE: (a) 1980, 1990 and 2000 Population figures taken from the Federal Census Data.
City of Fairfield Planning Department.

OKI Regional Planning Authority.
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Table 16

CITY OF FAIRFIELD, OHIO
MISCELLANEOQUS STATISTICS

Date Of INCOPOrALION ....coouiiiiiitiiieii ettt sttt 1955
Form of Government ..., e et Council/City Manager
AATBA oottt e e eeae e et e e bt e e et rr e e e e s raee st St e et e ettt e e e s aaare s 20.5 square miles
LaNe MBS Of S OIS vttt e s et st e e e r e e e e resa st e e s e s b e e e e e et e aanaraan e 377
Number of Street Lights................... e eeetteteereteesesisesissssseesieeseteetesenttteeianneteeeaaettee et esetareessereeas 1,525
Number of Traffic Lights ......cc.ccc....... e e beetaeneneteserer ————a———————————————- et tatetee i e —raraeeeaaeatteaaans 52
Fire Protection:
NUMDET OF SEBHIONS ..eeiveiiiieiie e ettt ierreeere s s raa s s ansesenanaan e aasastsaesaesseesastsaeseeaaaaeeeessananonsnnnn 3
Number of Firemen and OffiCEIS ... .coveueirieee ettt e e e tre e e s s st e e ae e e e e sbonees 20
NUMDBDEr Of Part-THMNE Fil MM ... veereeiitiiitiieeietetabs bt as s eeseesseeeeesasesiessaeeaaeseasaansasnnes 43
Number of Paramedic UNits .........uuueeeiiieiiiieic e 2 Full-time Paramedic Units

Police Protection:

NUIMIDET OF SEHONS ...ev e eeeveeee et st eeeeeseeeseseeeeestesssssssseesesesassesesesesessenseseeesaseesssebebebsssesesstcnnees 1
Number of Police Officers .........ccccovcvevrnnenie SO OO SO P ST SRR TR OUPRORROIPON 49

Public Utility Department:
"~ Number of Customers .........cccocvvvivieviiniiivniiiinnn J OO PSR PSOPIR 12,000
Average Daily Consumption of Water ........cccoovveivieniiiiniiniiiiren i 3,500,000
MIlES OF WALl LINES ..oeieeieeeiiieiiiee ettt eeee st s et et et e e ettt e et et st e e e e s s et b et s aneanabnns 200
MIlES OFf SEWET LINES ..oeiiiiiiiiiiiii et se s tre s s s ere e e sese e eeseseeesaeiese s e e ea s e s e e as st et s bb s sbnrabaeaees 175

Recreation and Cuitural: :
N UMD T Of PAIKS .. .veeeeeeeeee et eeeee s e e eaeeessessessbtesasaessnsessseseeeasseaasnnasaassaseasesaeennaassrasesareesasesneas 14

NUIT DT Of LD AT S - .ot et et ettt e e e e et ereeeeseesnta e e et esernbas s aaeaennane s eeeaastnransssseeneesansens 1

INUMDEE OF VOIUMES ...ttt ee ettt et ee et v et ae s tr e s aa e s aae e e e e es bbbt se s s s s es s s seneanas 86,000
Employees:

ClaSSIfIBA SEIVICES ... iiiiieeieiiee et e et eeteaseies e s aaasn e e et seaaesessseaasstabasereanssmetaiineessiesestiinsns 199

EEXBITIDE ¢ttt eteete ettt et e e te e e et e s e bt e e e sb e e aeeesees e e R s et eL b er e AR g e e R L e e b et e e eneas 46

Source: City of Fairfield Finance Department
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